
________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________ 

Delaware Health

And Social Services

DIVISION OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

PROCUREMENT 

Date: September 1, 2009 

HSS 09 017

DACSES REPLACEMENT QUALITY ASSURANCE

FOR

DIVISION OF CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT

Date Due: October 5, 2009 11:00 AM EDT

ADDENDUM #1 

PLEASE NOTE: THE ATTACHED SHEETS HEREBY BECOME A PART OF THE ABOVE 

MENTIONED BID 

1. Questions & Answers 

SANDRA S. SKELLEY, CPPO, CPPB 

PROCUREMENT ADMINISTRATOR 

(302) 255-9291 

MIDGE HOLLAND 

CHIEF OF ADMINISTRATION, DCSE 

(302) 395-6698 



DACSES Replacement Quality Assurance RFP (HSS-09 017) 

Questions & Answers 

DACSES Replacement Quality Assurance RFP (HSS-09 017)

Questions & Answers

September 1, 2009

Division of Child Support Enforcement 1 of 14 

Delaware Health and Social Services 

State of Delaware 



DACSES Replacement Quality Assurance RFP (HSS-09 017) 

Questions & Answers 

1. Section 1.2, Page 10: Who conducted feasibility study project? Is that 

company eligible to propose on this project? 

Response. Policy Studies, Inc conducted the feasibility study for the project 

and is eligible to bid on the QA RFP. 

2. Section 3.2, Figure 2, Page 20: Has the State selected a project manager yet 

for this project? 

Response. See Section 2.5.2 

3. Section 3.2, Figure 2, Page 20: What is the anticipated timeframe for issuing 

the IV&V RFP? 

Response. The IV&V procurement is being handled by the State Auditors 

office and at this point DCSE has no information about RFP for 

the contract. 

4. RFP Page 19, Section 3.2.11, Please explain further what is meant by 

providing project information for quality assurance purposes to the State 

Project Manager and IV&V Contractor. 

Response. The State expects the Quality Assurance Vendor to provide 

status reports and QA deliverables to State Project Manager and 

provide QA documentation and project status as required 

during IV&V audits. 

5. RFP Page 19, Section 3.2.11, Please explain further what is meant by the 

requirement to Provide plans, staffing, and schedules for addressing any 

deficiencies identified through the quality assurance process 

Response. State expects the QA vendor to identify any deficiencies in 

project deliverables (both implementation vender and PMO 

deliverables) and project processes and to provide 

recommendations improve plans, staffing or processes to 

resolve these deficiencies. 

6. RFP Page 25, Section 3.3.1, This section does not appear to clearly delineate 

responsibility between the QA contractor and Implementation contractor. 

Can you specify whether the QA or Implementation vendor is meant when 

the term Contractor is used in this section? 
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Response. QA Contractor is referred as both Contractor and QA Contractor 

in this section. 

7. RFP Page 28, Section 3.7, Please clarify the bullet: “Review and make 

recommendations processes to ensure they are being documented, carried 

out, and analyzed for improvement.” 

Response. Review and make recommendations regarding project 

processes to ensure that they are being documented, carried 

out, and analyzed for improvement. 

8. RFP Page 37, Section 3.15.3, Is the library required to be maintained by the 

QA Contractor a subset of the SharePoint repository to be used for all project 

documentation or is this material to be maintained outside of SharePoint? 

Response. The library referred in section 3.15.3 will be maintained as a 

separate section in SharePoint. 

9. RFP Page 41, Section 3.15.15, Which Plan is meant by the bullet: “Submit 

monthly update to the Plan within the first five (5) working days of the 

month.” 

Response. QA Project Plan 

10. Page 28, Section 3.7 QA Contractor Responsibilities, 1st bullet states, 

“evaluate project progress, resources, budget, schedules, work flow, 

reporting and contractor oversight.”, the 4th bullet adds, “project 

management planning documents”, 6th bullet adds, “state staffing plans”, and 

11th bullet adds, “lines of communication”, all of which are deliverables 

under the responsibility of the Project Manager, the person to which QA 

reports. 

•••• Is this lack of independence acceptable to the State or should the vendor 

develop alternatives to preserve and deliver an independent assessment? 

Response. The QA vender is part of the State’s project management team 

and was not intended to be an independent reviewer. QA results 

will be discussed in project status forums where project 

leadership as well as the Project Manager will work in concert 

to address deficiencies. 
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•••• Page 29, Section 3.15.11 Data conversion: a) Will there be a language 

preference in writing conversion code? This would impact which skill set 

to offer for the assessment. 

Response. Conversion code language selections will be proposed by the 

implementation vendor. 

•••• Page 40, Section 3.15.15 Recurring Tasks and Deliverables a) The timeline 

in this section refers to 5 days to respond to JAD deliverables while 

section 3.3.1 State Review and Approval Timeline allows for 15-30 days 

for the State to review. Is the State amenable to sharing the timeframe at 

a different ratio if they find themselves comfortable in the completeness 

of the QA review? 

Response. Yes. However the state expects the QA vendor to complete their 

review well before the Review and Approval deadlines to allow 

the project team to consider QA recommendations well in 

advance of the approval deadline. . 

11. How would the State quickly resolve disputes with regard to whether the 

contractor has satisfied performance measures? 

Response. Formal feedback will be provided during the Status Meetings. 

12. Would the State agree to excuse performance by the Contractor as a result of 

any event beyond the reasonable control of Contractor, including but not 

limited to strikes, telecommunications outages, and terrorist acts, so long a 

performance is excused only to such extent and duration as is reasonably 

necessary? 

Response. This can be discussed during contract negotiations with the 

successful bidder. 

•••• Would the State agree that neither party shall be liable for delays in 

performance, or the inability to perform, arising out of causes beyond its 

reasonable control and without its fault or negligence? 

Response. See response to question 12. 

13. Would the State agree that if statutory or regulatory changes impact contract 

scope, performance, or payment, then the State shall equitably adjust 

Contractor’s compensation? 
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Response. See response to question 12. 

14. In the unlikely event that the State were not to pay the undisputed amount of 

an invoice within the time period required by the Contract, what late fee 

would the State pay with respect to that amount? 

Response. See response to question 12. 

15. Would the State agree to limit the Contractor’s liability to the Contractor’s 

revenue from the Agreement? 

Response. See response to question 12. 

16. Would the State agree that Contractor shall have the right to remove or 

reassign key persons as a result of circumstances beyond Contractor’s 

reasonable control, including but not limited to resignation, illness, or 

disability of such Staff Member and that in the event such a situation arises, 

the Contractor shall not be subject to reduced payments? 

Response. See response to question 12. 

17. Would the State agree that if rules, policies, procedures, guidelines or 

changes in regulations in laws affect the cost of providing the services, the 

State shall make an equitable adjustment in compensation? 

Response. See response to question 12. 

18. Would the State agree that if statutory or regulatory changes impact contract 

scope, performance, or payment, then the State shall equitably adjust 

Contractor’s compensation? 

Response. See response to question 12. 

19. Would the State agree to excuse performance by the Contractor as a result of 

any event beyond the reasonable control of Contractor, including but not 

limited to strikes, telecommunications outages, and terrorist acts, so long a 

performance is excused only to such extent and duration as is reasonably 

necessary? 

Response. See response to question 12. 
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•••• Would the State agree that neither party shall be liable for delays in 

performance, or the inability to perform, arising out of causes beyond its 

reasonable control and without its fault or negligence? 

Response. See response to question 12. 

20. RFP Section 1.2, Background and Purpose, page 10. Would the Division of Child 

Support Enforcement (DCSE) please provide the name of the contractor that 

performed the services involved with the review of its current and future 

business needs as described in the fifth paragraph of this section? 

Response. See response to question 1 

21. RFP Section 2.5.1, Northrop Grumman, page 16. As an existing DACSES related 

contractor, is Northrop Grumman also prohibited from bidding on this 

Quality Assurance RFP? 

Response. No. Northrop Grumman is not prohibited from bidding on this 

contract. 

22. RFP Sections 3.9, Professional Work Environment, pages 29-30, and 3.12.4, On-

Site Project Work, page 34. Would DCSE please clarify whether it intends to 

provide space at the project facility for the Quality Assurance Contractor staff 

or if it intends for the Quality Assurance Contractor to establish and pay for 

its own project office site? 

Response. The Quality Assurance Contractor staff will be housed at the 

project site. 

23. RFP Section 3.10 Required Qualifications, page 31: How will the State define or 

judge “appropriate levels and/or experience” as listed in this section? 

Response. Multiple years of credible experience performing QA in IT 

projects 

24. RFP Section 3.15.14 QA Status Report, page 40: This section refers to “The 

Activities Report.” Is this another term for the QA Status Report, a section 

within the QA Status Report, or a completely separate report? 

Response. Yes . The activities report is the same as the QA Status Report. 
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25. RFP Section 3.15.15 Recurring Tasks and Deliverables, page 40: Has the 

number of anticipated JAD sessions been estimated? If so, what is the 

estimated number? 

Response. No, it will be estimated by implementation vendor. 

26. RFP Section 3.15.15 Recurring Tasks and Deliverables, page 40: Please provide 

a list of the deliverables that are considered to be the “JAD Deliverables.” 

Response. See Appendix R - DACSES Replacement Implementation 

Deliverables in QA RFP 

27. RFP Section 3.15.15 Recurring Tasks and Deliverables, page 40: Does the 

statement “Review and provide comment to the State Project Manager on all 

deliverables” refer specifically to the deliverables listed in Appendix R, or are 

any other deliverables included in this review process? 

Response. The QA vender will be expected to review and evaluate the 

implementation deliverable listed in Appendix R as well as the 

project management deliverables from the PMO office. 

28. RFP Section 3.15.16 IV & V Reviews, page 41: Is “earned value” expected to be 

part of the IV&V reviews? 

Response. The IV&V vendor and OCSE will determine requirements for 

IV&V reviews. 

Please note the QA vendor and the IV&V vendor are different entities and 

have different requirements. 

29. RFP Section 3.17, Required Experience, pages 41-42. There is a reference in the 

next to last paragraph of this section to augmentation project staff, which has 

not been addressed anywhere else in the RFP except for the pricing 

schedules. Can DCSE please elaborate on how it envisions “Augmentation 

Quality Assurance” will be used on the project? 

Response. See section 3.16. State is giving QA bidders the option to provide 

costs for staff to fill the staff augmentation roles described in 

section 3.16. 

30. RFP Section 4.2, Tier-One: Evaluation of Proposals, pages 43-44. Would DCSE 

please clarify the meaning of the sixth bullet in the list of evaluation criteria 
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that reads, “Distribution of work to individuals and firms or economic 

considerations?” 

Response. This refers to minority or women owned businesses and any 

other targeted business entities. 

31. RFP Section 5.3.4, QA Plan and QA Requirements (Section D), pages 53-54. The 

second paragraph under this section directs that costing information in terms 

of fully loaded rates for each staff person be included in the Technical 

Proposal section, which is contravened by other sections of the RFP. Would 

DCSE please clarify where it would like this information presented within the 

proposal? 

Response. Cost information should only be contained in Business section 

of the Proposal. 

32. RFP Section 5.4.1, Project Costs and Budget (Section A), page 56. This section 

directs that positions be budgeted full time at 40 hours per week. However, in 

fulfilling the scope of work, the potential exists for certain skill sets to be used 

on less than a full-time basis. Would DCSE find it acceptable to project cost 

for fulltime staff based on a 40-hour workweek and for those working less 

than full time on the appropriate number of hours proposed? 

Response. Yes 

33. RFP Section 5.4.1 Project Costs and Budget (Section A), page 56: Will any other 

software besides MS Office Professional products be required on QA 

Contractor computers? 

Response. State will provide any additional software required for the 

project to the QA Contractor computers for the duration of the 

project. 

34. RFP Section 6, Terms and Conditions, page 59. The introductory paragraph 

states, “The following provisions constitute the terms and conditions of the 

contractual agreement between the State of Delaware, Department of Health 

and Social Services (DHSS DCSE) and its DACES Replacement Implementation 

Project management contractor.” (emphasis added) Is this language correct 

or is it intended to read Quality Assurance Contractor? 

Response. It is intended to read Quality Assurance Contractor. 
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35. RFP Section 6.2, Payment for Services Rendered, page 60. Assuming all of 

Section 6 is intended to apply to the Quality Assurance Contract and not the 

Implementation Contractor as stated, would DCSE consider monthly 

payments instead of the quarterly payment schedule mentioned in Section 

6.2? 

Response. May be raised during contract negotiation with the successful 

bidder. 

36. RFP Section 7.7.2, Appendix G2 – Quarterly Billable Costs, page 86. As presently 

constructed, this pricing sheet does not allow for costs in second, third, and 

fourth quarters of State Fiscal Year 2009-2010, covering December 2009 

through June 2010. Should the proposer add these rows to the spreadsheet or 

will DCSE revise and reissue? 

Response. The proposer should add additional rows for second, third, and 

fourth quarters in the spreadsheet for fiscal year 2009-2010. 

37. RFP Section 7.7.4, Appendix G4 – Staff Augmentation Rates, page 90. Does 

DCSE envision the augmentation staff to be listed on this pricing sheet 

possesses similar quality assurance credentials as other staff bid on the 

project or different skill sets? If the same, would the rates not match those 

listed on Appendix G3 – Yearly Cost Breakdown? 

Response. Yes. Since the quality assurance contract is a fixed priced 

contract, if the QA provided staff through the staff augmentation 

option the vendor may propose rates increases for each year for 

staff augmentation positions only. 

38. Please clarify Section 3.12.4, first sentence: "The project site shall be located 

in New Castle County Delaware within ten (10) miles of DCSE offices as 84 A 

Church's Road, New Castle, Delaware 19720". Is this statement for the QA 

vendor's office site or the entire project's office site? 

Response. The entire project’s office site. 

39. Section 3.16 speaks to the possibility of staff augmentation. If DHSS/DCSE 

offers staff augmentation opportunities to the selected QA vendor, must this 

staff follow the same on-site requirements of a 4 day per week minimum at 

the project location? 

Response. This may be negotiated with the successful bidder. 
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40. Section 6.2 speaks to quarterly payments based on six-month reviews. Please 

clarify this invoicing and approval process. 

Response. Since IV & V is proposed on a six-month scheduled we will have 

project evaluations, including evaluation of QA effectiveness 

every six months. The successful bidder may negotiate the 

proposed quarterly payment schedule. 

41. What is the current DCSE caseload and number of employee staff? 

Response. Currently, DCSE has approximately 60,000 open cases and has 

about 250 employees. 

42. General: Is there a schedule for the production of Implementation Vendor 

Deliverables? If so, please provide. 

Response. No. The implementation project plan will be developed after 

selection of the implementation vender. 

43. General: Is there an overall timeline for the completion of each of the phases 

of the Replacement Implementation Project? If so, please provide any 

timeline, Gantt chart, and/or milestone dates for the project. 

Response. No. See the implementation RFP on the state’s website for 

details. The project plan will be developed and shared with the 

successful QA vendor after the implementation vendor is 

selected. 

44. Section 3, page 19: This section states that “bidders must show their 

understanding of all the various aspects outlined in this section and must 

show their approach in addressing each aspect.” Section 5.3.4, page 53 says 

that “bidders must discuss each of these subsections within Section 3.7 and 

3.15.” Do bidders need to respond to each subsection of Section 3 or just 

respond to Sections 3.7 and 3.15? 

Response. Sections 3.3.1, 3.7 and 3.15 require specific responses and the 

other subsections in section 3 require general responses. 

45. Section 3.1, page 19: This section states that DCSE plans a significant 

commitment of its staff to work with the Contractor in managing the project 

on a day-to-day basis. It then lists a series of PM artifacts that are to be 

created. We assume the Contractor being referred to here is the QA 

contractor (not Ciber, the PMO contractor), is this correct? If so, is it the 
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State’s intention that the QA contractor assists with creating these 

deliverables or are we to QA the deliverables and the approach to creating 

them? 

Response. The QA vendor will QA the PM deliverables. 

46. Section 3.2.11, page 24: Please clarify the intent/scope of the following QA 

Contractor responsibility: “Develop quality assurance standards for each 

project deliverable” There are approximately 250 Implementation Vendor 

deliverables. Is it the State’s intention that separate QA standards be 

developed for each of these deliverables by the QA Contractor? Or are these 

standards to be developed for each of the major categories under which the 

deliverables are contained? 

Response. The State expects the QA contractor to develop standards for 

each of the major categories, and specific standards for some 

deliverables. 

47. Section 3.2.11, page 24: Please clarify the intent/scope of the following QA 

Contractor responsibility: “Provide plans, staffing, and schedules for 

addressing any deficiencies identified through the quality assurance process.” 

For example, does this refer to deficiencies in executing the QA functions? Or 

something else? It does not seem appropriate for the QA Contractor to make 

plans, schedules, and staffing decisions for the State or the Implementation 

Vendor for project/software development deficiencies. 

Response. See response to question 5. 

48. Section 3.3.1, page 25: Within this section it states that “The State reserves 

the right to extend the ten (10) State business day requirement for review 

and comment on any revised deliverable. Any such extension, however, will 

be specific to each deliverable. The total number of days for all extensions to 

review revised deliverables shall not exceed twenty-five (25) State business 

days.” If this time line is exceeded, what is the remedy? Is the deliverable 

considered accepted by default at that point without the modifications? With 

the modifications? Or something else? Please clarify. 

Response. Exceeding this timeframe will under no circumstances 

constitute implicit state approval of any deliverable. 

49. Section 3.3.1, page 25: Within this section it states that “If any 

recommendations are not addressed they need to be documented with 

appropriate reason on not addressing them.” We assume that this 
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documentation will be the responsibility of the Implementation Vendor or 

the State, as the decision not to address a recommendation will be coming 

from one of those parties. Is this correct? 

Response. No. The State expects the QA contractor to make an assessment 

of the reasons for not addressing the recommendation and 

evaluate any associated limitations. 

50. Section 3.5, page 27: Please provide details on the templates, processes, 

procedures, and tools the QA contractor must use for Progress Reporting, 

Risk Management, and Issue Tracking and Resolution. 

Response. These will be provided to the successful QA bidder. 

51. Section 3.11.3, page 31: Is the vendor who conducted the work associated 

with drafting the Reengineering Feasibility Study, the IAPD, conducting the 

BPR eligible to bid on this QA opportunity? 

Response. Yes. 

52. Section 3.15.3, page 37: Within this section it references “Attachment 1” for a 

list of Implementation Deliverables. There was no such attachment in the 

RFP. However, there is an Appendix R – DACSES Replacement 

Implementation Deliverables. Is this the correct replacement for Attachment 

1? 

Response. Yes. 

53. Section 3.15.15, page 40-41: Within this section it states that “The QA 

Contractor shall be responsible for specific recurring deliverables as outlined 

below. 

•••• Review and provide written comment on the Implementation Vendor’s 

Project Plan within five (5) working days of receipt of updated plan. 

•••• Review and comment on Implementation Vendor’s deliverables resulting 

from JADs within five (5) working days of receipt. 

Please provide the frequency of the Implementation Vendor’s Project Plan 

updates. Please provide the number and timing of the JAD deliverables. 

Response. Implementation Vendor’s Project Plan will be updated on 

weekly basis. The number and timing of JAD deliverables will be 

available after the state selects the implementation vendor. 
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54. Section 5, page 47: This section states that proposals must be submitted in 

“five, separate, sealed volumes, bound separately”. Does the State want each 

binder separately sealed or can all copies of the Technical Proposal be bound 

together and all copies of the Business Proposal bound together? 

Response. State expects separate binders for each copy of the technical and 

business proposals. 

55. Section 5, page 47: Bidders are to submit three signed originals of the 

proposal. Section 5.3.1, page 52 requires that the original Transmittal Letter 

is submitted in a separate, sealed envelope inside the package containing the 

Technical Proposal. If we are to submit three originals, should all three 

original transmittal letters be separately sealed within the three original 

Technical Proposals and the two additional copies bound within the 

Technical Proposal copies? 

Response. QA bidders are required to provide only one original transmittal 

letter in a sealed package with the proposal. 

56. Section 5.3.4, page 53: This section requires the bidder to “provide detailed 

description of required staff resources and hours, and also include in the 

staffing proposal a fully loaded rate for each staff person bid in case changes 

to the project scope necessitate a contract amendment.” Since no cost 

information is allowed in the Technical Proposal, should this requirement be 

deleted and included as part of the response to the Business Proposal? 

Response. Yes. All cost information must be included only in the business 

proposal. 

57. Section Appendix R, page 112: Is it the State’s intention that the QA 

Contractor maintains staffing and oversight support services through the 

twelve (12) Month Warranty and Post-Implementation Support Period? 

Response. No. 

58. Section 3, Page 24 of 112, 3.2.11 – QA Contractor, What is the scope of a “Pre-

IV&V” review? 

Response. Pre-IV&V is preparing and ensuring all the required 

documentation for IV&V is ready and available for auditing. 
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59. Section 3, Page 27 of 112, 3.7 – QA Contractor Responsibilities, Is QA 

Contractor to provide automated risk and issue tracking or does this fall to 

Ciber’s PMO? 

Response. State expects QA contractor to identify any risks and issues in 

addition to the risks/issues available in Risk Register and Issue 

log and notify the PMO. QA Contractor is responsible any issues 

assigned for resolution. PMO is responsible for tracking of risks 

and issues. 
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